
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA 

NICHOLAS A. FETTY AND DELTA 
TACTICAL, LLC 

PLAINTIFFS 

VERSUS 

THE LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF 
PRIVATE SECURITY EXAMINERS, 
FABION P. BLACHE, III, INDIVIDUALLY 
AND IN HIS CAPACITY AS EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE BOARD, RITCHIE 
RIVERS, MARK A. WILLIAMS, 
MARIAN H. PIERRE, WILBERT 
SANDERS, JR., HECTOR ECHEGOYEN, 
MARIA V. LANDRY, EDWARD 
ROBINSON SR., DURELL P. 
PELLEGRIN, MISTY FINCHUM 

DEFENDANTS 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 

JUDGE 

MAGISTRATE JUDGE 

JURY DEMANDED 

COMPLAINT 

NOW INTO COURT, through undersigned counsel, come Nicholas A. Fetty 

(hereinafter referred to as "Fetty" or "Plaintiff'), and Delta Tactical, LLC (herinafter referred to 

ass "Delta Tactical" or "Plaintiff'), both of whom respectfully file this Complaint against the 

named defendants for the reasons more fully set forth, as follows: 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. 

This action arises under the Constitution of the United States, particularly under the 

provisions of the Fourth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United 
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States, and under federal law, particularly 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Also, Plaintiffs make one or more 

claims under the Louisiana Constitution and Louisiana "tort" law. 

2. 

Jurisdiction of this Court is invoked pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1343, as this Court has 

"federal question" subject matter jurisdiction concerning these parties. In addition, the principles 

of supplemental jurisdiction are invoked over the non-federal question cause(s) of action 

remaining; as this Court has jurisdiction of these claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

3. 

Venue is appropriate in the Middle District of Louisiana pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391. 

Plaintiffs herein are: 

PARTIES 

4. 

A. Plaintiff, Delta Tactical, LLC is a limited liability company organized pursuant to the 

laws of the State of Louisiana, with its principal place of business located at 15059 W. Beaver 

Drive; Pride, Louisiana 70770, represented herein by its managing member and registered agent 

for service of process, Nicholas A. Fetty; 

B. Plaintiff, Nicholas A. Fetty is a person of the full age of majority, domiciled in and a 

resident of the Parish of Livingston, State of Louisiana, who was issued license number 0966 by 

the Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners (hereinafter referred to as the 

"LSBPSE" or "Board") on March 22, 2017. 

5. 

Made Defendants herein are 

A. The Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners is a state board created as an 
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agency of the state government of the State of Louisiana within the Department of Public Safety 

and Corrections, and was established by the Louisiana State Legislature by Acts 1984, No. 505, 

§1, eff. Jan. 1, 1985. It is governed by the Private Security Regulatory and Licensing Law found 

in Louisiana Revised Statutes, Title 37, Chapter 47, §§ 3270, et seq. Pursuant to the grant of 

authority issued thereto by LSA - R.S. 37:3274(A)(3) , the Louisiana Department of Public 

Safety and Corrections through the LSBPSE adopted and promulgated rules and regulations to 

govern the practice of private security in the state of Louisiana, which rules and regulations are 

found at the Louisiana Register 13:751 (December 1987) and the Louisiana Administrative Code, 

Title 46, Part LIX. The Board is located at 15703 Old Hammond Highway, Baton Rouge, 

Louisiana 70816. 

B. Fabion P. Blache, III (hereinafter referred to as "Blache"), in his individual capacity and 

in his capacity as executive director of the LS BP SE, in his official capacity, as he is responsible 

for supervising all employees of the Board, performing all administrative duties of the Board, 

supervising all inspectors, performing administrative inspections, and performing any duties as 

may be prescribed by the Board for the proper administration of the practice of private security 

agents and businesses. LSA - R.S. § 37:3275. His office is located in East Baton Rouge Parish at 

15703 Old Hammond Highway, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70816. 

C. The members of the Board in each of their official capacity(ies) as members of the Board, 

namely: Ritchie Rivers; Mark A. Williams; Marian H. Pierre; Wilbert Sanders, JR.; Ector 

Echegoyen; Maria V. Landry; Edward Robinson SR.; Durell P. Pellegrin; Misty Finchum, as the 

agents ultimately responsible for administering and enforcing the state's practice of private 

security agents and business laws. LSA - R.S. 37:3274(A) and (B). Their office is in East Baton 

Rouge Parish at 15703 Old Hammond Highway, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70816. 
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INTRODUCTION 

6. 

This lawsuit: ( 1) seeks to vindicate and recognize Plaintiffs' right to economic liberty 

under the United States Constitution and the Louisiana Constitution of 1974; (2) seeks to 

establish and seeks a Judgment declaring that the defendants violated and deprived Plaintiffs' of 

certain rights and privileges accorded and guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment to the 

United States Constitution and the Louisiana Constitution of 1974; and seeks damages. 

Plaintiffs are engaged in the business of providing private security agents and security services to 

the citizens of the State of Louisiana. To engage in the practice of a private security agent and a 

private security business, the state requires the Ii censure of private security agents and businesses 

to be in the best interest of the citizens of this state, and further requires that qualifying criteria in 

a professional field be met prior to Ii censure. The State of Louisiana, pursuant to LSA - R.S. 

37:3271 et seq., particularly LSA - R.S. 37:2373, has established the Louisiana State Board of 

Private Security Examiners as an agency of the state government in the Department of Public 

Safety and Corrections. The LSBPSE require private security agent and a private security 

business to satisfy the requirements as set forth in LSA R.S. 37:3271, et seq. as well as any and 

all rules and regulations, bylaws, and rules of professional conduct adopted by the LSBPSE and 

set forth in the Louisiana Administrative Code, Title 46, Part LIX. The aforementioned statutory 

authority and rules and regulations, bylaws, and rules of professional conduct adopted by the 

LSBPSE, as applied to Plaintiffs, have deprived Plaintiffs of their constitutional right to 

economic liberty- a right protected by the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States 

Constitution and Article I, Sections 2, and 24 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 
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FACTS 

7. 

Fetty is the sole and managing member of Delta Tactical, LLC, a limited liability 

company, organized on January 25, 2017 pursuant to the laws of the State of Louisiana which 

was charter number 42532702K by the Louisiana Secretary of State. Fetty and/or Delta Tactical 

is Licensee of the LSBPSE having been issued license number 0966 thereby on March 22, 2017. 

8. 

On October 16, 2017, the LSBPSE, acting through Blache issued a "Notice of 

Revocation of Company License Number 0966" (hereinafter refereed to as the "Notice"), which 
l 

purportedly revoked the license issued to Fetty and/or Delta Tactical which was issued thereto by 

the LSBPSE on March 22, 2017. The Notice directed to Delta stated that, "[T]his letter serves to 

notify you that pursuant to LSA - R.S. 37:3289(A)(9), the Louisiana State Board of Private 

Security Examiners is revoking your company license to engage in the private security business 

in Louisiana . . .. " 

9. 

Additionally, on October 16, 2017, the LSBPSE, purportedly acting through Blache 

issued a "Cease and Desist Order" ordering that Delta and/or Fetty nor Delta Tactical has been 

served with the Cease and Desist Order as required by LSA - R.S. 37:3293 and/or LAC, Title 46, 

Part LIX, Chapter 6, § 601, and/or Chapter 9, § 901. 

10. 

The Cease and Desist Order directed to Delta to "forthwith to CEASE & DESIST from 

engaging in the contract security business within the State of Louisiana." 
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11. 

The Notice issued by Blache on October 16, 2017, purportedly on behalf of the LSBPSE, 

as well as the Cease and Desist Order issued by Blache on that same date was issued illegally and 

unlawfully. 

12. 

The Private Security Regulatory and Licensing Law at LSA R.S. 37:3288 provides that. 

"[A ]ny person who is determined by the board, after reasonable notice and opportunity for a 

fair and impartial hearing held in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, 

[emphasis supplied] to have committed an egregious act that is a violation of this Chapter or 

regulation or rule issued thereunder is subject to an administrative penalty of not more than five 

thousand dollars per violation per day and shall subject such person to revocation of his license. 

13. 

The Louisiana Administrative Code, Title 46, Part LIX, Chapter 6, § 60], one of the rules 

and regulations, bylaws, and rules of professional conduct adopted and promulgated by the 

Department of Public Safety and Corrections, Board of Private Security Examiners, LR 13:758 

(December 1987), amended LR 18:196(February1992), LR 26:1076 (May 2000) provides that, 

"[B]efore revoking or suspending a license or registration card, or imposing fmes or costs 

over $500 [emphasis supplied], the board will afford the applicant an opportunity for a hearing 

after reasonable notice of not less than 15 days, except in a case of a failure to maintain the 

required insurance or when a registrant is found carrying an unauthorized weapon while 

performing the duties of a security officer." 

14. 

The Louisiana Administrative Code, Title 46, Part LIX, Chapter 9, § 901, also promulgated by 
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the Department of Public Safety and Corrections, Board of Private Security Examiners, LR 

13:758 (December 1987), amended LR 18:196 (February 1992), LR 26:1076 (May 2000), 

provides that, "[A ]ny person who is determined by the board, after reasonable notice and 

opportunity for a fair and impartial hearing held in accordance with the Administrative 

Procedure Act [emphasis supplied, to have committed an act that is a violation of R.S. 37:3270 

et seq., or any rule herein, is subject to an administrative penalty of not more than $500 per 

violation; and/or denial, suspension, or revocation of a license or registration card; and/or 

imposition of probationary conditions or other restrictions including assessment of administrative 

costs incurred." 

15. 

Neither Fetty nor Delta received reasonable notice nor were they been given an 

opportunity for a fair and impartial hearing, as required by LSA R.S. 37:3288, prior to the action 

taken by Blache on October 16, 2017, purportedly on behalf of the LSBPSE. 

16. 

Neither Fetty nor Delta received reasonable notice nor was Fetty and/or Delta given an 

opportunity for a fair and impartial hearing, as required by LAC Title 46, Part LIX, Chapter 6, § 

601 and Chapter 9, § 901, prior to the revocation and/or the Cease and Desist action taken by 

Blache on October 16, 2017, purportedly on behalf of the LS BP SE. 

17. 

After the action taken by Blache on October 16, 2017, Fetty and Delta requested a fair 

and impartial hearing on October 31, 2017, notwithstanding the requirement that a fair and 

impartial hearing should have been conducted prior to such action being taken as required by due 

process. 
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18. 

In response to Fetty and Delta's request therefor, the LSBPSE scheduled a purported fair 

and impartial hearing on Fetty and Delta's license revocation for Thursday, January 25, 2017. 

19. 

Delta had two (2) employees namely" (1) Dalton Miller (hereinafter referred to as 

"Dalton"); and (2) Colt Miller (hereinafter referred to as "Colt"). 

20. 

Fetty and Delta aver that since the revocation and/or the Cease and Desist action taken by 

Blache on October 16, 2017, purportedly on behalf of the LSBPSE, Colt had numerous and 

significant contact and conversations with Blache. 

21. 

On information and belief, Colt made application to the LSBPSE for licensure, which 

was been approved, pending compliance with the LSBPSE's insurance requirements. 

22. 

Fetty and Delta further aver that a telephone conversation between Dalton and Colt was 

held on November 17, 2017, after Fetty and Delta's request for a fair and impartial hearing of 

October 31, 2017 

23. 

Fetty and Delta further aver that during the course of that telephone conversation, Colt 

volunteered and told Dalton that he, [Colt] had talked to Blache about the hearing requested by 

Fetty, that the hearing is not about whether or not Fetty loses his license, that it would be about 

whether Fetty could ever get another license. 
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24. 

Fetty and Delta further aver that Colt further advised Dalton that Blache had already 

talked to the LSBPSE Board members, and that the Board had already decided that Fetty's 

license would be revoked, and that Fetty would not be getting his license back. 

25. 

Fetty and Delta further aver that Colt further advised Dalton that the hearing before the 

LSBPSE Board was merely a formality intended, only, to satisfy the due process requirements. 

26. 

On December 27, 2017, Fetty and Delta file a Motion for En Banc Recusal of Members 

of the Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners with supporting Memorandum. 

27. 

Fetty and Delta aver that their counsel agreed with counsel to the LSBPSE that the 

hearing scheduled for Thursday, January 25, 2018 on the issue of the revocation and cease and 

desist order would be converted and limited to a hearing on Fetty and Delta's Motion for En 

Banc Recusal of Members of the Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners. 

28. 

Fetty and Delta aver that on Thursday, January 25, 2018 the LSBPSE held an 

administrative hearing on Fetty and Delta's Motion for En Banc Recusal of Members of the 

Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners, which Motion was denied, as evidenced by 

the attached Exhibit "A." 

INJURY TO PLAINTIFF FETTY 

29. 

Plaintiffs Fetty hereby incorporates the allegations set forth above, all of which are fully 
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re-alleged here. 

30. 

Defendants' actions threaten PlaintiffFetty's economic liberty-his right to engage in the 

practice of a private security agent and a private security business, free from unreasonable 

governmental interference. 

INJURY TO PLAINTIFF DELTA TACTICAL, LLC 

31. 

Defendants' actions have caused Delta real, substantial and irreparable harm. 

32. 

Defendants' enforcement of the state's Private Security Regulatory and Licensing Law, as 

applied to Delta, currently prevents and continually prevent Fetty and Delta from fulfilling 

contacts for services, employing competent, experienced private security agents. 

33. 

Because of Defendants' actions, Fetty has been forced to terminate Delta's most 

qualified, experienced private security agents and terminate contracts to provide private security 

services. Delta has had to expend considerable resources in obtaining contacts to provide private 

security services, obtaining the training required by the LSBPSE for private security agents and 

for a private security business and obtaining the required liability insurance required by the 

LSBPSE for private security businesses. 

34. 

Defendants' actions threaten the business's ability to survive and prosper. Because of 

Defendants' actions, Delta cannot effectively operate its business. It is precluded and unable to 

offer private security services to its customers. 
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35. 

Defendants' actions have harmed Delta's goodwill with its customers. Its customers have 

expressed dissatisfaction that Delta's private security service is no longer available. 

CAUSES OF ACTION 

A. COUNT 1 

Violation of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution 
and Article I, Section 2 of the Louisiana Constitution- Substantive Due 
Process 

36. 

Plaintiffs hereby incorporate the allegations set forth above, all of which are fully re-

alleged here. 

37. 

The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides, in pertinent part, 

that, "[N]o state shall make or enforce any law which shall abridge the privileges or immunities 

of citizens of the United States; [ n ]or shall any state deprive any person of life, liberty, or 

property, without due process oflaw .... " 

38. 

The Louisiana Constitution at Article I, § 2 thereof, provides that, "[N]o person shall be 

deprived of life, liberty, or property, except by due process oflaw." To claim the protections of 

due process, a claimant must show the existence of some property or liberty interest which has 

been adversely affected by state action. 

39. 

Once licenses are issued ... their continued possession may become essential in the 

pursuit of a livelihood. Suspension of issued licenses thus involves state action that adjudicates 
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important interests of the licensees. In such cases the licenses are not to be taken away without 

that procedural due process required by the Fourteenth Amendment. 

40. 

The United States Supreme Court stated that, "[a] 'fair trial in a fair tribunal is a basic 

requirement of due process."' 

41. 

This applies to administrative agencies which adjudicate, as well as to courts. Not only is 

a biased decisionmaker constitutionally unacceptable but 'our system of law has always 

endeavored to prevent even the probability of unfairness. 

42. 

The state Administrative Procedure Act attempts to prevent partiality or bias 

in adjudicative settings by prohibiting ex parte consultations and requiring recusal of subordinate 

deciding officers or agency members from proceedings in which they cannot accord a fair and 

impartial hearing or consideration. 

43. 

LSA R.S. 49:960(A) provides that: "Unless required for the disposition of ex parte 

matters authorized by law, members or employees of an agency assigned to render a decision or 

to make findings of fact and conclusions of law in a case of adjudication noticed and docketed 

for hearing shall not communicate, directly or indirectly, in connection with any issue of fact or 

law, with any party or his representative, or with any officer, employee, or agent engaged in the 

performance of investigative, prosecuting, or advocating functions, except upon notice and 

opportunity for all parties to participate." 
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44. 

LSA R.S. 49:960(B) provides that: "A subordinate deciding officer or agency member 

shall withdraw from any adjudicative proceeding in which he cannot accord a fair and impartial 

hearing or consideration. Any party may request the disqualification of a subordinate deciding 

officer or agency member, on the ground of his inability to give a fair and impartial hearing, by 

filing an affidavit, promptly upon discovery of the alleged disqualification, stating with 

particularity the grounds upon which it is claimed that a fair and impartial hearing cannot be 

accorded. The issue shall be determined promptly by the agency, or, if it affects a member or 

members of the agency, by the remaining members thereof, if a quorum. Upon the entry of an 

order of disqualification affecting a subordinate deciding officer, the agency shall assign another 

in his stead or shall conduct the hearing itself. Upon the disqualification of a member of an 

agency, the governor immediately shall appoint a member pro tern to sit in place of the 

disqualified member in that proceeding. In further action, after the disqualification of a member 

of an agency, the provisions ofR.S. 49:957 shall apply." 

45. 

The LSBPSE was placed in a compromised position by Blache in comments attributed to 

him, and found itself in a quandary through no fault of its own. Notwithstanding, the "well has 

been poisoned", and the Board cannot drink therefrom without adverse effects befalling Fetty. 

46. 

Fetty could not, in any circumstance, receive a fair and impartial hearing mandated by due 

process, if presided over by the LSBPSE Board. 

47. 

While the members may have believed that they can disregard what Blache was alleged to 
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have done, nonetheless, any possible scenario other than full en bane recusal and withdrawal of 

the Board would and did project an appearance of partiality and impropriety, and also call into 

question whether the LSBPSE Board was subliminally biased by Blache's alleged ex parte 

communication. 

48. 

The failure of the Board to withdraw, en bane, compromised the public's confidence in 

the adversarial system to receive a fair and impartial hearing, and eroded the integrity of the 

administrative process. 

49. 

For each of these reasons, Louisiana's Private Security Regulatory and Licensing Law 

and regulations as applied to Plaintiffs by Defendants, their agents and employees, 

unconstitutionally deprive Plaintiffs of their right to due process of law protected by the 

Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 2 of the 

Louisiana Constitution. 

50. 

Plaintiffs have no other legal, administrative, or other remedy by which to prevent or 

minimize the continuing irreparable harm to their constitutional rights that is a direct and 

proximate result of Defendants' application of Louisiana's laws and regulations to threading 

businesses and threaders, including Plaintiffs. Unless Defendants are enjoined from committing 

the above-described violations of Article I, Section 2 of the Louisiana Constitution, Plaintiffs and 

other threading businesses and threaders will continue to suffer great and irreparable harm. 

B. COUNT II 

Violation of Article I, Section 24 of the Louisiana Constitution-
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Unenumerated Rights 

51. 

Plaintiffs hereby incorporate the allegations set forth above, all of which are fully re

alleged here. 

52. 

Article I, Section 24 of the Louisiana Constitution, states, in relevant part, that the 

"enumeration of certain rights" in the Louisiana Constitution, "shall not deny or disparage other 

rights retained by the people." Therefore, the people of Louisiana have rights beyond just those 

enumerated in the Louisiana Constitution's Declaration of Rights, and these rights receive the 

same protection as those rights that are enumerated in the Louisiana Constitution. 

53. 

Article I, Section 24 protects Plaintiffs' right to economic liberty-that is, their right to 

earn a living and conduct business free from unreasonable governmental interference. 

54. 

Under Article I, Section 24, a law that impairs an individual's economic liberty must have 

a real and substantial relationship to public health, safety, or welfare. 

55. 

Under Article I, Section 24, a law that impairs an individual's economic liberty must be 

rationally related to a legitimate governmental interest. 

56. 

Under Article I, Section 24, a law that impairs an individual's economic liberty must not 

be arbitrary and capricious. 
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57. 

Louisiana's Private Security Regulatory Law, as applied to Plaintiffs and others who 

provide commercial threading services, have no real and substantial relationship to public health, 

safety, or welfare. 

58. 

Fetty and Delta aver that on September 22, 2017, Blache penned a correspondence to 

Fetty and Delta alleging that Fetty had stipulated to an administrative penalty and fine in the 

amount of Five Thousand and 100/100 ($5,000.00) Dollars, for the same alleged violations 

which formed the basis for the revocation and cease and desist order. 

59. 

Had Fetty and Delta paid the alleged assessed fine, then Fetty and Delta would have been 

allowed to continue operation. 

60. 

Fetty and Delta aver that any and all necessary corrective action identified in Blache's 

writing had been completed. 

61. 

Louisiana's Private Security Regulatory Law, as applied to Plaintiffs and others who 

provide private security agent and a private security business, do not advance any legitimate 

governmental interest. 

62. 

Louisiana's Private Security Regulatory Law, as applied to Plaintiffs and others who 

provide private security agents and a private security services, are arbitrary and capricious. 
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63. 

For each of these reasons, Louisiana's Private Security Regulatory Law and regulations as 

applied to Plaintiffs by Defendants, their agents and employees, unconstitutionally deprive 

Plaintiffs of the unenumerated right to economic liberty protected by the Fourteenth Amendment 

to United States Constitution and Article I, Section 24 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

64. 

Plaintiffs have no other legal, administrative, or other remedy by which to prevent or 

minimize the continuing irreparable harm to their constitutional rights as a direct and proximate 

result of Defendants' application of Louisiana's Private Security Regulatory Law and regulations 

to Fetty and Delta. Unless Defendants are enjoined from committing the above-described 

violations of the Fourteenth Amendment to United States Constitution and Article I, Section 24 

of the Louisiana Constitution, Plaintiffs business will continue to suffer great and irreparable 

harm. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF REQUESTED 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for relief as follows: 

A. For an entry of judgment declaring that La. R.S. §§ 37:3270 et seq. and its implementing 

regulations, Louisiana Admin. Code, Title 46, Part LIX, §§ 601 et seq. against Fetty and Delta 

are unconstitutional when applied to Plaintiffs' practice of providing private security agents and 

private security services. 

B. For an order permanently enjoining Defendants from enforcing Louisiana's Private 

Security Regulatory Law and regulations to Plaintiffs' practice of providing private security 

agents and private security services. 

C. For an award of damages pursuant to 42 U.S.C §§ 1983 et seq. for violations of Plaintiffs' 
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SERVICE INFORMATION --

Please Serve:

The Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners
through its Executive Director & Chief Administrative Officer 

Fabian P. Blache, III
The Louisiana State Board of Private Security Examiners, 
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Ritchie Rivers
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Mark A. Williams
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Marian H. Pierre
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Wilbert Sanders, JR.
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Ector Echegoyen
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Maria V. Landry
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Edward Robinson SR.
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 

Durell P. Pellegrin
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 
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Misty Finchum
15703 Old Hammond Highway 
Baton Rouge, LA 70816 
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NINETEENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 

PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE 

ST A TE OF LOUISIANA 

NICHOLAS A. FETTY AND DELTA 
TACTICAL, LLC 

PLAINTIFFS 

VERSUS 

THE LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF 
PRIVATE SECURITY EXAMINERS, 
FABION P. BLACHE, III, INDIVIDUALLY 
AND IN HIS CAPACITY AS EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE BOARD, RITCHIE 
RIVERS, MARK A. WILLIAMS, 
MARIAN H. PIERRE, WILBERT 
SANDERS, JR., HECTOR ECHEGOYEN, 
MARIA V. LANDRY, EDWARD 
ROBINSON SR., DURELL P. 
PELLEGRIN, MISTY FINCHUM 

DEFENDANTS 

CIVIL ACTION NO. 

JUDGE 

MAGISTRATE JUDGE 

JURY DEMANDED 

AFFIDAVIT OF VERIFICATION 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary Public, duly commissioned and qualified in and 

for the State and Parish aforesaid, PERSONALLY CAME AND APPEARED: 

NICHOLAS A. FETTY 

who, after being by me duly sworn, said that he has read the above-captioned pleadings, and all 
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of the allegations of fact contained therein are true and correct, to the best of his knowledge, 

information, and belief. ~O~ 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED, before me, Notary Public, on this .;;!ft!;frlJ day of 

Jku1.; ) , 2018. 

UMFIELD, JR. (LSB " #"21 
11924 Justice A venue; Suite C 

Post Office Box 3515 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-3 515 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
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